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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as “Chetak Technology Limited")

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as “Chetak
Technology Limited") (the “Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(the "Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generaily accepted in india, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its

profit including other comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board of Directors report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive loss, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irreqgularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional jJudgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended;

(e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to this report;

(@) No managerial remuneration has been paid by the Company during the year;
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(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief and read
with note 40(f) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shail, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

2 b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief and read
with note 40(g) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that were considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to

believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

vi.  No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

[THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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vii. ~ Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used SAP S4 Hana
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software (refer note 40(k) to the financial statements).
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail of relevant prior year has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the
extent it was enabled and recorded in the prior year, as stated in note 40(k) to the financial
statement.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

AV

per Paul Alvares

Partner

Membership Number: 105754
UDIN: 25105754BMITKD8771
Place of Signature: Pune

Date: April 28, 2025




U0 uUvdiduUuugiusgdiuodu+4a9uau

a4

o ogoobogoaae

& oL o Ay

SRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL
AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS"” OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Re: Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as “Chetak Technology Limited") (the “Company')
In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of

account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(@ @)A)

M @XB)

(@ (b)

M ©

OX())

(e

(i) (@

@i (b)

(i) (a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by management in the
current year, but there is a planned program of verifying them once in three years which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) held by the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or Intangible Asset during
the year ended March 31, 2025. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3¢)d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the frequency of verification by Management is reasonable
and the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate.
Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed
during such physical verification.

Based on the information and explanations given by management, the Company has not been
sanctioned any working capital limits on the basis of security of current assets from banks or
financial institutions at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to any other entity, other than to its employees as follows:

Particulars
Aggregate amount granted during the year*
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date

Loans to employees (Rs. in Lakhs)
41.12
26.43

*It includes loan amounting to Rs. 5.08 lakhs pertaining to employees transferred from Bajaj
Auto Limited (the Holding Company) during the year.

Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a)(A) and (B) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.
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@iii) (b)

(i) (©)

(iiiy (d)

(i) (e)

i) ()

(iv)

W)

(vi)

(vii) (@

(vii) (b)

(viii)

During the year the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans
and advances in the nature of loans to its employees are not prejudicial to the Company's
interest. Since, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to any other entity, other than to its employees, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)b), 3(iii)Xc), 3(iiid), 3(iii)e) and 3(ii)f) of the Order is
not applicable in respect of any entity other than employees.

The Company has granted loans and advances in the nature of loans during the year to its
employees where the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and the repayment/receipts are reqular.

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to employees during the year,
there are no amounts overdue for more than ninety days. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iiX(d) in respect of employees is not applicable.

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to employees, there were no
amounts which have fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh
loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same employees.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) in respect of employees is not
applicable.

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to employees, there were no
amounts granted which were either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3iii)(f) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not advanced any loans, guarantees or security to any entity covered by
the provisions of section 185 and section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company in respect
of section 185 and section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, pertaining to these
transactions.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the products/services of the Company. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues wherever applicable. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues, were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues wherever
applicable, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during
the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or interest thereon due to
any lender during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(a) and
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company did not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares / fully
or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT- 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xi)c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirements to report on clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xiiXb) and 3(xii)c) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section
177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under
clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.
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(xviXa)/(b)/(c) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Further, the Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking
Financial or Housing Finance activities and is not a Core Investment Company as defined in
the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi)@), 3 (xvi)(b) and 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

E & d U

(xvi)(d) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, in the Group (in
accordance with Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) there are 18
companies forming part of the Group of the Company which are CICs (These are unregistered
CICs as per Para 8.1/9.1 of Notification No. RBI/2020-21/24 dated 13 August 2020 of the
Reserve Bank of india).

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 268.35 Lakhs in the current year
and amounting to Rs. 800.02 Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year respectively.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company
and accordingly requirements to report on clause 3(xx)@) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

\g\/
per Paul Alvares
Partner

Membership Number: 105754
UDIN: 25105754BMITKD8771
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Place: Pune
Date: April 28, 2025
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF BAJAJ AUTO TECHNOLOGY LIMITED (EARLIER KNOWN AS "CHETAK
TECHNOLOGY LIMITED")

Re: Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as “Chetak Technology Limited") (the “Company™)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Bajaj Auto
Technology Limited (earlier known as “Chetak Technology Limited") (the “Company") as of

March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143¢10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for axternal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial contral with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI,

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants '
ICAL.Firm Registrg{ion Number: 324982E/E300003

N

per Paul Alvares

Partner

Membership Number: 105754
UDIN: 25105754BMITKD8771
Place of Signature: Pune
Date: April 28, 2025
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AS AT
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BAJAJAUTO TECHNOLOGY LIMITED (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2025

T In lakh
Particulars Note No.| As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 1,850.88 501.48
Capital work-in-progress 2 317.99 423
Intangible assets 3 1,640.17
Intangible assets under development 3 2,936.28
Financial assets
Loans 4 22,53 -
Other financial assets 5 7.68 64.20
Income tax assets (net) 640.77 426.94
Deferred tax asset (net) 15 2,595.75
Other non-current assets 6 - 53.96
10,012.05 1,050.81
Current assets
[nventories 7 20.83 3022
Financial assets
Investments 8 25,818.72 30,807.48
Trade receivables 9 2,070.71 0.50
Cash and cash equivalents 10 557.37 575.49
Other bank balances 11 - 2,600.00
Loans 4 3.90 0.03
Other financial assets including fixed deposits 5 4,886.25 3,436.69
Other current assets 6 881.84 91535
34,239.62 38,365.76
Total 44,251.67 39,416.57
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 47,000.00 47,000.00
Other equity 13 (8,636.59) (10,108 42)
38,363.41 36,891.58
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 14 43843 89.78
438.43 89.78
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
_ Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 16 67.19 21937
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 16 1,297.76 98164
Other financial liabilities 17 3,01L.14 1,044.43
Other current liabilities 18 254.62 2524
Provisions 14 819.12 164,53
5,449.83 2;435.21
Total 44,251,67 39.416.57

Summary of material accounting policies followed by the Company

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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BAJAJ AUTO TECHNOLOGY LIMITED (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

T in lakh
q Year ended Year ended
Eaiticulars NoteNo- | 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from contracts with customers 5,745.40 11,497.75
Other operating revenue 2,986.37 4,576.35
Revenue from operations 19 8,731.77 16,074.10
Other income 20 2,461.49 1,204.99
Total income 11,193.26 17,279.09
Expenses
Cost of raw materials and components consumed - 4,596.11
Purchase of traded goods - 3,780.24
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 21 - 180.42
Employee benefits expense 22 10,871.73 5,026.20
Finance costs 23 0.12 0.12
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 291.33 1,328.98
Other expenses 25 5,631.70 4,180.27
Expenses, included in above items, capitalised (4,754.79) =
Total expenses 12,040.09 19,092.34
Profit/(Loss) before tax (846.83) (1,813.25)
Tax expense
Current tax - -
Deferred tax (2.519.71)
Total tax expense 26 (2,519.71)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,672.88 (1,813.25)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - =
Actuarial gains/(losses) of defined benefit plans (261.33) (40.81)
Tax impact on above 76.04
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (net of tax) (185.29) (40.81)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 1,487.59 (1,854.06)
Basic and diluted Earnings/(Loss) per share (in T) 27 04 0.4)
(Nominal value per share ¥ 10)

Summary of material accounting policies followed by the Company |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements On behalf of the Board of Directors
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BAJAJAUTO TECHNOLOGY LIMITED (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

A. Equity share capital

T in lakh
. Year ended Year ended
[ NoteNo. | 3 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
At the beginning of the year 47,000.00 47,000.00
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 47,000.00 47,000.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year (issue of share capital) - -
At the end of the year 12 47.000.00 47,000.00
B. Other equity
Tin lakh
Particulars Note No. Reserves and surplus oher
reserves
Share Total other
General reserve Reta'med based equity
earnings payments
reserve
Balance as at 31 March 2023 13 - (8,244.55) - (8,244.55)
Profit / (Loss) for the year - (1,813.25) - (1,813.25)
Recognition of share based payments to employees - - 15.76 1576
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - (40.81) - (40 81)
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024 (1,854.06) 15,76 (1,838 30)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Transaction costs on issue of shares - (25.57) - (25.57)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 13 - (10,124.18) 15.76 (10.108.42)
Profit / (Loss) for the year 1,672 88 - 1,672.88
Derecognition of share based payments to employees : (15.76) (15.76)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (185.29) - (185.29)
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2025 - 1,487.59 (15.76) 147183
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Transaction costs on issue of shares - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 13 - (8,636.59) = (8,636.59)

Note : There are no changes in accounting policies or prior period errors during the current or previous year,

Summary of material accounting policies followed by the Company

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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BAJAJAUTO TECHNOLOGY LIMITED (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

T in lakh

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

L Operating activities

Profit/(Loss) before tax (846.83)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Add:
i) Depreciation and amortisation expense 291.33
i) Loss on property, plant and equipment sold,
demolished, discarded and scrapped 7.43
iii} Recognition / (Derecognition) of share based expense (15.76)
iv) Interest expense 0.12
283.12
Less: !
i) Investment income included in above:
" Inferest income on fixed deposits 944 41
Gain on valuation and realisation of mutual
funds measured at fair value through profit or loss, net 1,500.05
2,444.46

ii) Surplus on sale of property, plant and equipment -

(2,444.46)
(3,008.17)
Change in assets and liabilities
i) (Increase)/decrease in inventories 9.39
ii) (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (2,070.21)
iii) (Increase)/decrease in loans, financial assets, and other assets (539.78)
iv) Increase/(decrease) in liabilities and provisions 2,619.88
19.28
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities before income-tax (2,988.89)
Income-tax paid (213.83)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activifies (3,202.72)
Il. Investing activities
i) Sale of investiments 21,780.00
ii) Purchase of investments (30,500.00)
iii) Sale/(purchase) of liquid mutual funds, etc., net 15,208.82
iv) (Increase) / decrease in other bank balances, net 2,600.00
v} Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including advances) (1,247.57)
vi) Sale proceeds of property plant and equipment -
vii) Capital expenditure on development of technical know-how (1,818.51)
viii) Intangible assets under development (2,936.28)
3,086.46
ix) Investment income
Interest income on fixed deposits 944 41
(Increase) / decrease in interest receivable (846.15)
98.26
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities 3,184.72
Carried forward (18.00)

1,328.98

20.88
15.76

|

55.42

1,143.64
1,199.06
4.04

‘

12,736.64
57.69

1,943.92
(3,802.06)

(16,150.00)
(1,799.13)
(1,100.00)
(4,210.98)
14,767.24

(8.492.87)

55.42
(31.08)

24,34

(1,813.25)

1,365.74

(1.203.10)
(1,650.61)

10,936.19
9,285 58
(423 44)

8,862.14

~ (8,468.53)




BAJAJAUTO TECHNOLOGY LIMITED (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

% In lakh

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Brought forward (18.00) 393,61
I11. Financing activities
i) Interest expense 0.12) (0.12)
i1) Transaction costs on issue of shares - (25.57)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (0.12) (25.69)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (18.12) 367.92
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 575.49 207.57
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [See note 10] 557.37 57549

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Corporate information

Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited) (the “Company”) (CIN
U34105PN2021PLC204858) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India. The
Company was incorporated on 04 October 2021 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Bajaj Auto Limited. The
Company is primarily engaged in the business of research and development of innovative / new and
distuptive technologies. The company is also engaged in manufacturing and distribution of automobiles.
and parts thereof. The registered office of the Company is located at Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune
411035.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors
of the Company on 28 April 2025,

1 Summary of material accounting policies followed by the Company
Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read together with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act,
on an accrual basis.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments for
details).

The financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency and all
values are rounded to the nearest lakh (INR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

All assets and liabilities, other than deferred tax assets and liabilities, have been classified as current or non-
current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III (Division
IT) to the Act. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. Based on
the nature of business and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for current and
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going
concern,

Material accounting policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1) Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the management to make
Jjudgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates
are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of
estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following
notes and in the relevant notes together with information about basis of calculation for each affected
line item in the financial statements:

a) Revenue and trade receivables [Refer para 1(2), note 19 and note 9]

b) Provisions and contingent liabilities [Refer para 1(11), note 14 and note 28]

¢) Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets [Refer para
13B)]




Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

2) Revenue from contracts with customers

——--ﬂ-lHﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂuﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂHHHHH

Revenue is recognised when control of goods (vehicles or parts) or services have been transferred
to the customer; at an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of goods and service
tax (GST). The current year revenue from operations is entirely on account of sale of services and
the previous year revenue from operations were from sale of products and sale of services.

Royalty income:

Royalty revenue is based on sales and is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the
substance and terms of the relevant agreement.

Sale of Goods (vehicles or parts)

The Company has determined that in case of sale of goods transfer of control, and therefore revenue
recognition, generally corresponds to the date when the goods are released to the carrier responsible
for transporting them to the customer in the following manner:

Domestic sales are recognised at the time of dispatch from the point of sale;

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction
price (net of variable consideration and consideration payable to customers) allocated to that
performance obligation. In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company
considers the effects of variable consideration, consideration payable to the customer and the
existence of significant financing components (if any).

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount (like volume rebates/incentives, cash
discounts, subventions etc.), the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The estimate of variable
consideration for expected future volume rebates/incentives, cash discounts, subventions etc. are
made on the most likely amount method.

Consideration payable (o the customer

Consideration payable to a customer includes cash amounts that the Company pays, or expects to
pay, to the customer,

Financing component

Generally, the Company receives short term advances from its customers. The Company applies the
practical expedient for short-term advances received from customers. That is, the promised amount
of consideration is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component if the period
between the transfer of the promised good or service and the payment is one year or less. In cases
where the Company does not receive short term advances from its customers, the terms of contract
with customers do not contain any express or implied payment terms which would indicate the
existence of a significant financing component.

Principal versus agent consideration in respect of freight
The Company, on behalf of its customers, dispatches goods to agreed locations for an agreed fee.

The Company has determined that the performance obligation of the Company is to arrange for those
goods and services (Company is an agent) to the customers and hence the amount charged to the

customer offset by freight charges paid to the freight service providers is shown as revenue and /,
disclosed as other operating income or other operating expenses, depending upon the results of thef

offsetting.
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Contract balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

Advance received from customers

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is received, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract

liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Other operating revenue

Income is recognised on accrual basis in accordance with the substance of their relevant agreements,

3) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation / amortisation

A. Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Property,
plant and equipment except land are carried at historical cost of acquisition, construction or
manufacturing, as the case may be, less accumulated depreciation and amortisation.

Cost represents all expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition
capable of operating in the manner intended. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of
the plant and equipment, if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Costs incurred to manufacture/construct property, plant and equipment are reduced from the
total expense under the head “Expenses, included in above items, capitalised” in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included ‘in,the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

B. Depreciation and amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

(a) Other tangible assets
i

a. Depreciation is provided on a pro rata basis on straight line method to allocate the cost,
net of residual value over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset class Useful life
Plant and machinery 10-15 years
Computers and IT Equipment 03-06 years
Dies and Jigs 03-08 years
Electric installations and fittings 10 years
Factory equipment’s 10-15 years
Furniture 10 years
Office equipment 05-13 years
Prototype vehicles 1.5 year

b. Where a significant component (in terms of cost) of an asset has an estimated economic
useful life shorter than that of its corresponding asset, the component is depreciated
over its shorter life.

¢. The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and
management estimate, depreciates certain items of property, plant and equipment over
estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule
IT to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are
likely to be used.

ii.  Assets which are depreciated over useful life/residual value different than those indicated
by Schedule II are as under:

Asset class As per Schedule I1 Useful life
PDC Dies 8 years 3 years
Factory equipment 15 years 10 years
Prototype vehicles 10 years 1.5 years
Plant and machinery 15 years 10 years

iii.  Depreciation on additions is being provided on pro rata basis from the date of such month
of such additions.

iv,  Depreciation on assets sold, discarded or demolished during the year is being provided
up to the month in which such assets are sold, discarded or demolished.

4) Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered
to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another
asset. 4

Technical know-how developed by the Company

i) Expenditure incurred by the Company on development of know-how researched, is recognised
as an intangible asset, if and only if the future economic benefits attributable to the use of such
know-how are probable to flow to the Company and the costs/expenditure can be measured
reliably.

ii) Costs incurred to develop an intangible asset are reduced from total expenses and disclosed
under the head “Expenses, included in above items, capitalised” in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

iii) The cost of technical know-how developed is amortised equally over its estimated useful life
i.e. generally three years from the date of commencement of commercial production.
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

1v) Anintangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control)
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss
when the asset is derecognised. '

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research and development activities is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred unless the recognition criteria are met. Development expenditure on an
individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be
available for use or sale

Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

How the asset will generate future economic benefits

The availability of resources to complete the asset

The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

AN YANN

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset
begins when development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the
period of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

5) Investments, financial assets and financial liabilities

A,

Investments and financial assets

(i) Classification

The company classifies its financial assets at initial recognition in the following measurement
categories:

v’ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

v those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification is done depending upon the Company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets classified as “measured at fair value”, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income, as elected. For assets classified as “measured at amortised
cost”, this will depend on the business model and contractual terms of the cash flows.

(i) Measurement

Initial Measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), or fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL). The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial
asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing
them.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value including, in the
case of “a financial asset not at FVTPL”, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the f/S
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at “FVTPL” ard|
expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss, when incurred.



Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS
115. Refer accounting policy no.2 “Revenue from contracts with customers”.

For a financial asset to be classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(excluding equity instruments which are measured at FVTOCI), it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding.
This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at F VTPL, irrespective of the
business model.

The Company s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Subsequent Measurement

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the financial asset and the cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial instruments;

Subsequently measured at amortised cost:

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent SPPI are measured at amortised cost e.g. debentures, bonds, fixed maturity plans, trade
receivables etc.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. Interest income from trade receivables is included
in Other operating income in the Statement of Profit and Loss; whilst interest income from the
remaining financial assets is included in Other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. A gain or loss
on a financial asset that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.

Subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading, if any, are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

Equity instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in OCI. There is no recycling
of the amounts from OCI to Statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Subsequently measured at FVTPL: Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost and FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss e.g. investments in mutual funds.
A gain or loss on a financial asset that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier khown as Chetak Technology Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit losses associated with its
financial assets carried at amortised cost for e.g., debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and
bank balances. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and if so, assess the need to provide for the same in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit
losses (ECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

In respect of other financial assets (eg.: debt securities, deposits, bank balances etc), the Company
generally invests in instruments with high credit rating and consequently low credit risk. In the
unlikely event that the credit risk increases significantly from inception of investment, lifetime
ECL is used for recognising impairment loss on such assets.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider
all contractual terms of the financial instrument over the expected life of the financial instrument.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other
expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

e Financial assets measured at amortised cost and trade receivables: ECL is presented as an
allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet.
The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments based on shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis
that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Company applies the low credit risk
simplification. At every reporting date, the Company evaluates whether the debt instrument is
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Company reassesses the internal credit
rating of the debt instrument.

However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering
the contractual cash flows.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when Company has transferred the rights to receive cash

flows from the financial asset or the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have
expired. Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

6)

7)

transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases,
the financial asset is derecognised.

(v) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management
determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are
significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in
the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does
not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or
interest.

The Company applies amortised cost, where it has ability to demonstrate that the underlying
instruments in the portfolio fulfill the solely payments of principal and interest (‘SPPI’) test and
the churn in the portfolio is negligible.

B. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings in nature of bank overdrafts / credit facilities /
inter-company loans and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities includes trade and other payables, borrowings in nature of bank
overdrafts / credit facilities / inter-company loans. For purposes of subsequent measurement,
financial liabilities are classified at amortised cost.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-
generating units). Impairment loss of non-financial assets, if any are recognised in the Statement of
profit and loss.

Foreign currency transactions

i)  ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’).

ii) On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded at the foreign exchange rate
on the date of the transaction,

iii) Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency outstanding at the close of the financial year are
revalorised at the appropriate exchange rates prevailing at the close of the year.

iv) The gain or loss on decrease/increase in reporting currency due to fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates, in case of monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.




Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

v) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

8) Inventories

9)

Cost of inventories have been computed to include all costs of purchases (including materials), cost of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

i) Stores, packing materials and tools which does not meet the recognition criteria of property, plant
and equipment are valued at cost arrived at on a weighted average basis or net realisable value,
whichever is lower.

ii) Raw materials and components are valued at cost arrived at on a weighted average basis or net
realisable value, whichever is lower.

iii) Inventory of machinery spares and maintenance materials not being material are expensed in the
year of purchase.

iv) Goods in transit are stated at actual cost incurred up to the date of Balance Sheet. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Employee benefits
a) Privilege leave entitlements

Privilege leave entitlements are recognised as a liability, in the calendar year of rendering of
service, as per the rules of the Company. As accumulated leave can be availed and/or encashed at
any time during the tenure of employment, subject to terms and conditions of the scheme, the
accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next 12 months, is treated as short-
term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the reporting date.

They are therefore measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit
credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result
of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

b) Gratuity

Payment for present liability of future payment of gratuity is being made to approved gratuity fund,
which fully covers the same under Cash Accumulation Policy and Debt fund of the Life Insurance
Corporation of India (LIC) and Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Ltd. (BALIC). However,
any deficit in plan assets managed by LIC and BALIC as compared to the liability based on an
independent actuarial valuation is recognised as a liability.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the
projected unit credit method in conformity with the principles and manner of computation specified
in Ind AS 19.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in J/
subsequent periods.




Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢) Provident fund contributions are made to Regional Provident Fund..

10) Taxation

a)

b)

<)

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961; and the Income
Computation and Disclosure Standards prescribed therein. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses
only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Goods and Services Tax (GST) / value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring
expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST/ value added taxes paid, except:

*  When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item, as applicable

®  When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
other current/non-current assets/ liabilities in the balance sheet.

I1) Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When the likelihood of outflow of resources is

remote, no provision or disclosure is made.




Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

12) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As a lessee
a) Short term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of office
spaces and certain equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

13) Government grant and Incentives

Grants from the Government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received, and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other
operating revenue.

14) Cash and cash equivalents

For presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

15) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share is the net profit for the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and all periods presented
is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding without a corresponding change in resources.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

16) Segment reporting e

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Core
Management Committee which includes the Managing Director who is the Chief Operating Decision
Maker. The Core Management Committee examines performance both from a product as well as from
a geographical perspective and has identified single operative reportable segment from which
significant risks and rewards are derived.

17) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

e [nthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

¢ [nthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are approptiate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities
e Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

The Company has set policies and procedures for both recurring and non-recurring fair value
measurement of financial assets, which includes valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

For fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities based on the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.
This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in
the relevant notes.

e Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (para 1(1))

e Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 30)

e Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 30)

18) Other Income

The Company recognises other income on accrual basis. However, where the ultimate collection
of the same lacks reasonable certainty, revenue recognition is postponed to the extent revenue is
reasonably certain and can be reliably measured.

19) Employee stock compensation cost

The Company grants its employees stock options under stock options plan of Bajaj Auto Limited (the
‘Holding Company’). The Company grants stock options and records them as per the terms of
arrangement with the Holding Company. The scheme is managed and administered by the Holding
Company and the said scheme provides that these options would generally vest ratably over a period
and are to be exercised based on terms of stock options. The compensation benefit in respect of the
stock options is assessed, accounted and paid by the Company as per the recharge arrangement with
the Holding Company which represent the fair value of the options as accounted by Holding Company.
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either;

¢ Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

e Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market patticipants would

use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic
interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities
® Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
® Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

The Company has set policies and procedures for both recurring and non-recurring fair value
measurement of financial assets, which includes valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

For fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities based on the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.
This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in
the relevant notes.

* Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (para 1(1))

* Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 30)

¢ Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 30)

Other Income

The Company recognises other income on accrual basis. However, where the ultimate collection
of the same lacks reasonable certainty, revenue recognition is postponed to the extent revenue is
reasonably certain and can be reliably measured. o

Employee stock compensation cost

The Company grants its employees stock options under stock options plan of Bajaj Auto Limited (the
‘Holding Company’). The Company grants stock options and records them as per the terms of
arrangement with the Holding Company. The scheme is managed and administered by the Holding
Company and the said scheme provides that these options would generally vest ratably over a period
and are to be exercised based on terms of stock options. The compensation benefit in respect of the
stock options is assessed, accounted and paid by the Company as per the recharge arrangement with
the Holding Company which represent the fair value of the options as accounted by Holding Company.
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

20) Events after the reporting period

If the Company receives information after the reporting period, but prior to the date of approved for
issue, about conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, it will assess whether the
information affects the amounts that it recognises in its financial statements. The Company will adjust
the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect any adjusting events after the reporting
period and update the disclosures that relate to those conditions in light of the new information. For
non-adjusting events after the reporting period, the Company will not change the amounts recognised
in its financial statements, but will disclose the nature of the non-adjusting event and an estimate of its
financial effect, or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made, if applicable.

21) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards
Several amendments and interpretations apply for the first time annual periods beginning on or after 1

April 2024, but do not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company has
not early adopted any standards or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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4 Loans
A heeisr, iind, iskess shutedd i ise)
Non-current Current
Asal Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2028 31 March 2024
€in lakh Tin lakh € in lakh T In lakh
Emplox ce loans 2253 390 003
22.5) - 3.90 0.0)
5 _Other financial assets
Non-current Current
Asat Asat
3t March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
T ln lakh ¥ In lakh T in lakh Tin lakh
Sceurily deposils 768 64 20
[nterest receivable on lixed deposils . . 87751 3136
Other advances 1045
Dapaisats vith residunl maturily for less than iwelse months [See note |1 13,000 00
Othis réecivables [See note 33) 1,008 74 3,394 88
7.68 64.20 4.886.25 3,436.69
— — e —_
6 Other assets
(Unsecured, good, unless stated otherylse)
Non-current Current
Asal As at
31 Morch 2025 J1 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
¥in lakh ¥ in lakh T In lakh ®in lakh
Capitul advances 5196
Ady ances recoverable In cash or in kind
Other advances 124 64 i
GS'l erediVrefund receivable 394 80 38708
EV subsidy receivable 362 40 436 20
Other nssets - 60 36
- 53.96 LA 915.08
o =
7 _Inventories
As at
31 March 2025 31 Muarch 2024
TIn lakh € In lakh
Faw mnerials and components (includes in transit T Nil (previous vear T Nil)) 20.01 16.73
Flitislual poods 0.62 0.62
Slores, spares and packing material 0.20 12.87
20.83 30.22
i

Amount recognised in profit and loss

Wrile-diang ol iniwilories lo net realisable value - reversal of pravision for write-down. resulled in nel loss/(gain) of 2 26 48 Lakh [Previous year -
(he slifisant f predi L and loss.

TNil] These were recognised s an expense (income) during the yeor in
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

8 Investments
—_——

X In Lakh

Current Investmenis

As at 31 As at 31

March 2025 March 2024
In Fixed Deposits:

Unquoted:
- 7.35% Bajaj Finance Fixed Deposit 1,350 00
- 8.05% Bajaj Finance Fixed Deposit 21,000.00 -
Amortised Cost 22.350.00 -

Investment carried at fair value through profit or loss
In Liquid & Overnight mutual funds
Quoted:

- (497,413) Bandhan Liquid Fund - Direct Plan -Growth - 14,511.34

Fair Value - 14,511.34

In Short term mutual funds

Quoted:
22,947,339 (116,009,073) Bandhan Ultra Short term Fund - Direct Plan -Growth 3,468.72 16,296 14
Fair Value 3,468.72 16.296.14
Total 25.818.72 380748
e —————————— R
Book value Market Value as at
As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
Murch 2025 March 2024 Murch 2025 March 2024
Quoted 3,468 72 30,807 48 3,468 72 30,807.48
Unquoted 22,350.00 - NA NA
Total 25.818,72 30.807.48

Notes to Investments

1 Investments made by the Company other than those with a maturity of less than one year, are intended to be held for long-term On an assessment of the expected credit loss
due to significant changes in risk profile, no material provisions are required to be made.

()

Mutual funds, though unlisted, are quoted on recognised stock exchanges at their previous day NAVs which is the quote for the day

i Refer note | (5) for accounting policy on investments and note 31 for credit risk management related to investments
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

9 Trade receivables

Unseetired. considered yood
Receivables which hove significant incrense in credit risk

Apeing schedule

As at 31 March 2025

Current

Avat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Rin lakh ¥ In lakh

207071 030

2070.71 0.50

2,070.71 0.50

Particulars Ooutstandivg for follovwfag pericds G diie dige ol sk pricits
L thaiy o
tniths £ il - | v 1 -2 vears 2 -3 vears up thun § voary Total
1) Undisputed trade revervables = condidind gdood 24w - - - 207071
tit Undispuled trade recervables — whyeh huve
significant incrense in credit risk -
[Hspudaal trade receivables - considered pood
i) Eispuitend trade receivables - which have significant
merease in credit risk . - - - - -
2,070.71 - - - - 2,070.71
As at 31 Murch 2024
Particulars nll Chutntingong G fotbivmwaing s G diss el ol posiments
Loz i 60
months Sonnibs - | e 1 -2 veurs 2 -3 vears Ao il 3 vears Total
1) Undli: (rade I lured good 0.50 - - - 0.50
lies = which have
nl increase in eredil risk -
it Dhvapunid o receivables - considensd pood
I8 Dhiapsted drsitle reocivables - which have signilicant
inserenas in cnadit visk - . -
0.50 - - - - 0.50
10 Cish and eash equivalents
As al
31 Murch 2028 31 March 2024
€ in lakh ¥ In Iakh
Talnnges with lasmbs 35737 37549
557.37 57549
i
11 _Other bank balances
Non-current Current
Ay at Asal
31 March 20258 3 Muich 2024 3t March 2025 31 March 2024
Xin lakh Rin lakh X in lakh n takh
Denosits with original matunty of s than tree months but less than 1w clve months - 2,600,00
Deposits with restdual matunty fist e (hun twelve months = 3.000.00 -
R 2,600,060
Amoun disclosed vinder ‘other linancial a [See note 5| [RRLEIRET =
- - 2,600.00
— e
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025  *

12 _Equity shure capital

b.

3

d,

13

As al
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
¥ In lakh X in lakh

Authorlsed

850,000,000 (previous vear 850,000,000) equity shares of ¥ 10 each 85.000.00 85.000.00
e e
Issued, subscribed and fully pald-up shares

470,000,000 {previous vear 470,000,000) equily shares of T 10 each E7000 10 A7 AN L)

47000 A7, fiHlik 00

R of the shares at the | and at the end of (he ycur
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Equity shares N, ¥ lukhs N, _Tin Inkhs
At the beginning of the year AT (A 700800 AT A7 4N
Issied (bought back) during the vear - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year __M 47 ik ATILINN) 4700
—— S
Terms/rights attached fo equity shares
Thus Cipant hees vl v eliis of equily shimes g o par valieal 10 prer liive. Fh holder of equity shares is entitled Lo one vote per share. The Company declares und pays dividends in
I pupesss Tt ovient of Hguiion of the Congey’ e daldens of aftly’ sl 11 be entitled Lo reeeive remaining assets ol the Company, afler distribution of all preferential umounts, The
dastiabastiom will be i Jrrespartian 1t oumber o eaemy lires Il by e staidbolden
Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at As at
31 Murch 2125 31 March 2024

Equity shares of X 10 cach fully pald M. i Holuing Now, S Hodiling
Bnijaj Auto Limiled 470 000,000 100 00% 470,000,000 100 00%
Shareholding of Promoters
For FY 2024-25

% change during
Promoler name Nocolahwns %% 0f lital abuiris Uit Vi
[30juj Aulo Limited AT 0 [IEOE [

For FY 2023-24

% change during

Promoler nome Do ool aliaries % ol lotal plhares thi vy
Baiaj Auto Limitod AT 0 IR TN

Other equity

As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Xinlekh _  tinlakh

Reserves and surplus :

Retalned earnings

Balance as at the beginning of the year (10,124 18) (8.24d 55)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,672 88 (1.81325)
Items ol other comprehensive income recognised directly in relnined eamings

Avtunril wninafilossed) of definin benefit plans (185 29) 081
Less: Approprialions

Transnclion costs on issue of shares - 2557

Total appropriations - 2557
Bulanee a3 al the end of the year (8,636.59) (10,124.18)
Other reserves :
Share based pay ment reserve
Balunce as ut the beginning of the vear 1576 -
Add : Recognised / (Derecoprised) during the vear (15.76) 15.76
Balanee ns at the end of the vear - 15.76

!ﬁ&ifu,’\?! (U108, 12)

Nature and purpose of reserve :

Retalned carningy

Retained earnings is a free reserve: This is the secumulated profit/(loss) eamed/ineurmed by the Compony till date less disidend und other distributions made to the sharcholders

Share bused payment reserve

Share based paymenl reserve is created as required by Ind AS 102 Share Based Pavments” on the eniployee stock option sclieme operated by the Company for 1ts employ ees




---:ﬂ-I'.ﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂHHHHHHHHHHHBB

Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

14 _Provisions

Proslsion for employee beneflts [See nole 32)
Provision for gratuily
Provision for compensated absences

Other pros ivions
Provision for warrantics

15 Deferred tax asset [net)

Deferred tax liubllities
On account of iming dillerence in
Property, plant and cquipment
Financial instruments :
Mutual funds

Gross deferred tax HNabilliles

Deferred tax s
On aceount of liming dilterence in
Employee benefits -

Wellare scheme costs & others
Bonus provisions
Provision for privilege leme ete
Defined benefil plans provisions - P&L
Delined benelit pluns provisions - OCI

Other items

Carricd Torward losses and unabsorbed depreciation as per tax rocords

T'oxex, duties, olhers ete

Gross deferred (ax assels

Movement In deferred tux ussets (net) :

AL 31 March 2024
Charged/(credited) N

- o profil and loss

- to other comprehensive income
A3 March 2025

Non-current

Current

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Asal

31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024

?In lakh X In lakh 2 in lakh in lakh
41843 8978 = -
- - 819.12 i1 53
438.43 89.78 819.12 1153
= S o 1.00
438.43 89.78 819.12 164.53
e — O —
As at
31 Murch 2025 1 March 2024
—Sinlakh __ Vinlskn
1,61530 -
2337
1,638.67 -
002
2495 -
206 16
3430
76 04
47
188203
10.92 S
389295 S
4.234.42 -
2,595.75 -
S
Property, plant Flnancial Employee
and equipment instruments beneflts Other Items Total
¥ in Inkh Xin Iakh T in lnkh ¥in lakh ¥ n lakh
1,615 30 2337 (2654 (3,892 93) 231971
= - {76.04) - ey
1,615.30 23.37 341.47) (3.892.93) (2.59373)
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

16 Trade payables

Asal
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cin lakh 2 n lakh
Tolal outstanding dues of miiusis gierpirfses and snall T 6719 21937
Total outstanding dues of crosfitors ey thun Wit enfemiisis ind smoll cnlerprises 1,297.76 981.64
lgﬁ-l.ﬂS 1201.01

Agelng schedule :

As at 31 March 2025

Due - Outstanding for iufimving periods from due date of prvment

Unbilled Not due Less than | vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Tolal
¥ In fakh ¥ In lakh ¥ In lakh ¥ In Inkh ¥ In lakh L in Inkh ¢ In takh
(i) Micro enterpnses and small enterprises (MSME) - 6719 - - - - 6719
(i) Others 652 54 57644 6546 33 - - 1,297 76
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME » . B -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - . . . 5 o
643.63 6546 3.32 - - 1.364.95
] —
As al It March 2024
Due - Cutslainling i ol loving periods froi dise diike of pilytient
Unbilled Not due Less than | year 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 yeurs Total
¥ in lakh ¥ in lakh €in Inkh 2in Inkh % in lakh ¥ In lakh ¥ In Inkh
(i) Micro enterprises and small enlerprises (MSME) . 937 - - - - 21937
(if) Others 25652 o 72387 125 - - 98] 64
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others . c N - . . k.
256.52 219.37 723.87 1.28 - - 1,201.01
s, — ——
As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Xin Inkh X in lakh
Employee benetits pavable 245548 65952
Payable on purchase of property, plant and equipment 48206 -
Other puyables 73.60 38491
3301 114 1,044,43
Refer nole 30 for linancinl linbilities mensured at amortised cost
18 Other current linbilities
As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
¥ in lakh QIn lakh
Taxes and duties poyuble 25088 2295
Other pavables 3.74 2.29
254.62 25.24
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

19 Revenue from opevations

For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
—___tinlkh ___ Ciniskh_

Revenue from operations
Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale ol products* 1149775

Rovalty 5.745.40 -
3.743.40 11497.75

Other operullng revenue

Serap solex - 506

Business support senices 2,981 26 4,560.43

Miscellaneous receipls 487 678

Interest income on [inancial services to dealers 0.24 4.08
2,986.37 4576.35
8,731.77 16,074.10

Revenue from contracts with customers

(Goods transferred ut a point in lime / Sen ices ransterred over time)

Indin 5,745 40 1149775

Outside India .

Total eovenue from coniracty with customer 5,745.40 11,497.75

=

Reconciling the amount of reyenuc recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss with (he contracted price

Revenue as per contracted price 574540 1149715

Adjustments

Cash discounts & tarpet incenlives

Snles promolion expenses . -

Revenue from contruets with eustomers 5,745.40 11497.75

20 Other income

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rin lakh 2in lakh

Interest income 944 41 3542
Guin on valuation and realisation of mutunl funds measured at FV IPL 1,500 05 114164
2.444 46 1,199 06
Others
Surplus on sale of property, plant and cquipment - 404
Interest on Tax refunds / credits 1703 -
Gains on exchange {lucluntions - 189
1703 393

2.461.49 1.204.99

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Increase)/ decicase
2in lakh Rin lakh ¥ in lakh
Inventorles at the end of the year
Work-in-propress -
Finished goods 062 062 -
062 062 5
Inventorles ut the beglnning of the year
Work-in-progress - 4 66 466
Finished goods 062 176 38 17576
0.62 181.04 18042
- 180,42
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technolpgy Limited)

Notes to financial statements for (he year ended 31 March 2025

22 Employee bonefits expense

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
€ In lakh ¥ In lakh

Salaries, woges and bonus 1o emplovees 9.718 56 4,563 47
Contribulion to provident and vther funds [See note 32] 39337 19132
Emplovee Stock Compensalion Cost [ See nole 39] 24517 1576
Stall' wellore expenses 514.61 23565

~ 10871.73 5,026.20

23 Finance costs

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Xin lakh ¥ in lakh

Interest expense 0.12 0.12
0.12 0.12

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
€ in Jakh % In lakh

Depreciation on property, plant and cquipment 11299 1,328 98
Amortisation of technical know -how 178.14

291.33 12898
ey

25 Other expenses

For (he ycar ended

i NN R R R EEEEEEEREEREEERE

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Xin lakh X In lakh
Stores and tools consumed 49355 21185
Other consumables 28394 -
Pover, luct and water - 1428
Rent - 145312
Repairs and Maintenance 13049 43907
Repairs (o buildings 2477 32139
Insurance 1075 5264
Rates and taxes 346 993
Paymenl (o auditor 287 2350
Dircelors’ fees and travelling expenses 6350 700
Travelling expenses 13047 8710
Legal and professional charges 25435 13500
Receruilment, training and other manpower related cost 424 33 196 53
Solware related expenses Lid1 6l 58900
Business support services 287101 21096
Miscellancous expenses 28787 40500
Freight, forwarding expenses & packing material consumed 230 267
Vchicle servies charges and other expenses - 2125
Sales promotion expenses - 010
Loss on property, plunt and 743 2088

Payment to auditor

For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

¥ in lakh X In lakh
As auditor
Audil fee 200 200
Tax audit lee 030 030
Other services (eentificalion [ees) 037 -
2.87 2.50




u|

Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

26 _Tax expense

{a) Tux expense
Current tax
Current tax on profits (or the year

Deferred (ax

Devrease/{incrense) in deferred Lax nssels
(Decrenseincrease in deferred tax liabilities
Tolal deferred tax expense/(benefity

Tux expenses

(b) Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplicd by Indln's tax rate
Profit bl tox

Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25 168% (Previous vem - 25 168%)
Tux effect of ammimits which are nol deductible (laxable) in caleulating tasilile income:

- Exfirral 1 sissels in respect of brought lorward ux loss and urabvswrlicd depreciation
- (Mhers

Tax expense

0 Profit/(loss) for the vear @ In lakhy
Weighted avernge number of shares oulslisiding during (he vear (Nos)
b Eamings/(lums) per shure (Basic and Dililaly #

Face value per shure T

There are no contingent liubilities ns on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

29 Copital commitments

Capital commitments, nel of capilal advances

For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Cin lakh n lakh

(4,158 18) o
1 {38 07 -

2,519.71) =

(846 83) -

Q1313 -

2,302 63)
[KX))]

(2,519.71) =

For the year ended

31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024

1,672 88 (1,813 25)
470,000,000 470,000,000
04 04y
100 100
Ag at

31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024

®in lakh in Inkh

13835 LOI5 34
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

30

Fair value measurement

i) Financial instruments by category

T in lakh

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

FVIPL |  FVTOCI | Amortised Cost FVIPL | FVTOCI | Amortised Cost
Financial assets
Investments

- Short-term funds 3.468.72 - - 16,296.14 . -

- Liquid mutual funds - - 14,511.34 - -

- Fixed Deposits - 22.350.00 - - -
Trade receivabies - 2,070.71 - - 0.50
Loans - - 26.43 - - 0.03
Other financial assets - 4,893.93 - - 3.500.89
Cash and cash equivalents 557.37 - 575.49
Other bank balances - - - - 2.600.00
Total financial assets 3,468.72 - 29,898.44 30,807.48 - 6,676.91
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 1,364.95 - - 1.201.01
Other financial liabilities - - 3.011.14 - - 1,044.43

| Total financial liabilities - - 4,376.09 - - 2,245.44
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
ii) Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair

value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of

the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard
An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

2in lakh
Financial assets/liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements At 31 March 2025
Particulars Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial investments at FVTPL
- Short-lerm [unds 8 3.468.72 - - 3,468.72
= Liguid mutual funds 8 " = = &
Total linancial assets 3.408.72 - - 3.468.72
T In lakh
Financial assets/liabilitics measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements At 31 March 2024
Particulurs Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totnl
Financial investments at FVTPL
- Short-term funds 8 16,296, 14 - . 16,296.14
- Liguid mutual funds 8 14.511.34 - - 14,511.34
Total financial assels 30,807.48 - - 30,807.48

Level 1: Level [ hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices in active markets. Quotes would include rates/values/valuation
references published periodically by BSE, NSE etc. basis which trades take place in a linked or unlinked active market. This includes traded bonds and mutual
funds, as the case may be, that have quoted price/rate/value

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data (either directly as prices or indirectly derived from prices) and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates, If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2

Level 3: [f one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3 This is the case for unlisted
equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of fixed deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, other financial assets/liabilities,

loans, other bank balances and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values,
due to their short-term nature.
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
Note 31: Financial risk management

The Company’s activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including foreign exchange risk).

This note explains the sources of risk which the Company is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, | Credit ratings Diversification of counterparties,
financial assets measured at diversification of investment
amortised cost & fair value limits, monitoring of
through profit or loss counterparties basis credit rating
Trade receivables Credit Limit & | No. of overdue days, monitoring

Ageing analysis of credit limits
Liquidity Other liabilities Maturity analysis Maintaining sufficient cash/cash
Risk equivalents and  marketable
securities

Market Risk- | Highly probable forecast Sensitivity analysis | Since foreign exposure is not

Foreign transactions and financial material, company does not

Exchange assets and liabilities not hedge this exposure
denominated in INR

The Board of Directors provide guiding principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk and investment of available funds. The Company’s risk
management is carried out by a treasury department as per such policies approved by the Board of Directors.

A) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations leading to a financial
loss to the Company. Credit risk primarily arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments,
financial assets measured at amortised cost, financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss and trade
receivables. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit risk.

Credit risk management

In regard to Trade receivables, the outstandings are from Holding Company and hence the Credit Risk is very
low.

For other financial assets, the Company has an investment policy which allows the Company to invest only with
counterparties having a credit rating equal to or above AA+ and A 1+, The Company reviews the creditworthiness

of these counterparties on an on-going basis. Counter party limits maybe updated as and when required, subject
to approval of Board of Directors.
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
B) Liquidity risk

The Company’s principal source of liquidity are “cash and cash equivalents” and cash flows that are generated
from operations. The Company believes that its working capital is sufficient to meet the financial liabilities within
maturity period. The Company has no outstanding term borrowings. Additionally, the Company has invested its
surplus funds in fixed income securities or instruments of similar profile thereby ensuring safety of capital and
availability of liquidity as and when required. Hence the Company carries a negligible liquidity risk.

The Company had (Z In Lakh) As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
e Net Working capital funds 28,789.79 35,930.55
which includes
i) Cash and Cash equivalents 557.37 575.49
ii) Current [nvestments 25,818.72 30,807.48

The table below summarises the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2025 and
31 March 2024:

Maturities of financial liabilities

¥ in lakh

Less than and | More than 1

equal to 1 year year Total
As on 31 March 2025
Trade payables 1,361.63 3.32 1.364.95
Other financial liabilities 3,011.14 - 3,011.14
Total non-derivative liabilities 4,372.77 3.32 4,376.09
As on 31 March 2024
Trade payables 1.199.76 1.25 1,201.01
Other financial liabilities 1.044 .43 - 1,044.43
Total non-derivative liabilities 2,244.19 1.25 2,245.44
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

C) Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

The Company has no exports and is therefore not exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency
transactions. Foreign exchange risk arises from highly probable forecast transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s functional currency (INR). The risk is measured
through sensitivity analysis. The primary objective for forex hedging against anticipated foreign currency risks
will be to hedge the Company's highly probable foreign currency cash flows arising from such transactions (thus
reducing volatility of cash flow and profit). Currently, due to nil exports contribution, company doesn’t need to
hedge this exposure,

The Company also imports certain materials. Currently, Company does not hedge this exposure. Nevertheless,
Company may wish to hedge such exposures.

Open exposure

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period are as follows

USD Million USD Million |
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Receivables - -
Payables 0.19 -
(ii) Other risks

The Company has deployed its surplus funds into various financial instruments including units of mutual funds,
fixed maturity plans etc. The Company is exposed to price risk on such investments, which arises on account of
movement in interest rates, liquidity and credit quality of underlying securities.

The Company has invested its surplus funds primarily in mutual funds. The value of investment in these mutual
fund schemes is reflected though Net Asset Value (NAV) declared by the Asset Management Company on daily
basis. The Company has not performed a sensitivity analysis on these mutual funds based on estimated fluctuations
in their NAV as in management’s opinion, such analysis would not display a correct picture.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

32 Employee benefits

Liability for employee benefits has been determined by an actuary, appointed for the purpose, in conformity with the principles set out in the Indian Accounting Standard 19 the details

H O OE W d Y d

i

of which are as hereunder.

Funded schemes
Gratuity :

The Company provides for gratuity payments to employees The gratuity benefit payable to the employees of the Company is greater of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972 and the Company’s gratuity scheme Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity

T in lakh
L As at 31 March As at 31 March
Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 2025 2024
Gratuity Gratulty
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation (DBO) 1,15525
Fair value of plan sssets (716 82) -
Net funded obligation 438.43 -
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation 89.78
Amount not recognized due to asset ceiling - -
Net defined benefit liability / (#s%et) recognized in balance sheet 438,43 89,78
Expense recognized in the Statement of profit and loss
Current service cost 8085 2783
Pust service cost - -
Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 646 1.40
|Total expense charged to statement of profit and loss 87.31 29.23
Amount recorded as Other Com prehensive Income
Opening amount recognized in OCI outside statement of profit and loss 40 81 -
Remeasurements during the period due to
Changes in financial assumptions 4550 388
Changes in demographic assumptions (78 58) -
Experience adjustments 34507 36 86
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets (5065) 007
Adjustment to recognize the effect of asset ceiling - -
Closing amount recognized in OCH outside statem ent of profit and loss 302.15 40.81

Reconcilintion of net liability / (asset)

As at 31 Muarch

As at 31 March

2025 2024
Opening net defined benefit liability / (asset) 8978 1975
Expense charged to statement of profit and loss 8731 2923
Amount recognized outside statement of profit and loss 26134 40 81
Employer contributions > -
Closing net defined betielit lability / {(asset) 438.43 89.78
q N As ut 31 March As at 31 March
Movement in benefit obligation 2025 2024
Openitig of defined benefit obligation 8978 1975
Currerit service cost 80 85 2783
Past service cost - -
Inmterest on defined benefit obligation 6.46 146
Remeasurements due to:
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change i financial assumptions 4550 388
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions (78 58) .
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes 34507 3686
Benefits paid (141)
Liabilities assumed / (settled) 667 58 -
Cloging of defined berefit obligation 1,155.25 H9.78




Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Movement in plan assets

As at 3| Murch As at 31 March

2025 2024
Opening fair value of plan assets .
Employer contributions (includes ex-gratia payouts from the Company) - -
[nterest on plan assets 007
Remeasurements due to:

Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 5065 {007
Benefits paid (141) -
Assets acquired / (settled)* 667 58 -
Closmg fair value of plan nssets 716.82 -

* On account of inter group transfer

Disagaregntion of assets

As at 31 March As at 31 March

2025 2024
Category of assets
Insurer managed funds 716 82 -
Others - =
Grand Total 716,82 -

Senisitivity Analysis

Gratuity 15 a lump sum plan and the cost of
benefit obligation results are particularly se

providing these benefits 1s typically less sensitive to smail changes in demographic assumptions The key actuarial assumptions to which the
nsitive to are discount rate and future salary escalation rate. The following table summarizes the mpact i percentage terms on the reported
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 50 basis points

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Discount Salary escalation Discount Salary escalation
rate rate ke rate
Senior stall
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO -522% 545% -6.01% 631%
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 565% -5.10% 651% =5 8%
Junior staff
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO -6 12% -6 55% -9 05% PA 3
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 6. 78% -5 DRY) 10,24% B B7%

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefi

date There have been no changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analyses

it obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the accounting
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Funding arrangement and policy

position as well as level of under funding of the plan

The expected contribution pavable (o the plan next veir is 50 lakhs

The money contributed by the Company to the fund to finance the liabilities of the plan has to be invested
The trustees of the plan have outsourced the investment management of the fund to insurance companies The insurance companies in turn manage these funds as per the mandate
provided to them by the trustees and the asset allocation which is within the permissible limits prescribed in the insurance regulations

There 15 no compulsion on the part of the Company to fully pre fund the liability of the Plan The Company’s philosophy is to fund the benefits based on its own liquidity and tax

Projeeted plan cash Mow

31 March 2024
Semor staff
Jumior staff

31 March 2023
Senior staff
Junior staff

Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (in years)

Senior Staff
Junipr Staff

I table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be puid to the current membership of the plan

[essithan Between 1 -2 years Between 3 -5 years LReS Total
uyear years
3246 62 14 139.10 1,506 96 1,740 66
3042 3184 98 85 1,182.04 1,343 15
0.06 007 112 5233 5358
006 007 688 36227 36928

As at 31 March
2025

As at 31 March
2024

1383
12.88

12351
1924

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

Digcount rate (pa)

Principal Actuarial Assumptions (Expressed as Weighted Avernges) 2025 2024

6.85% 7 20%
Salary escalation rate (p a ) - senior staff 10 00% 10.00%
Salary escalation rate (p.a ) - junior staff 10 00% 10.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account, inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant factors, such as demand and supply in

the employment market

Unfunded Schemes

T In lakh

Particulurs Asat 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Compensated Com pensated
Absences Absences

Present value of unfunded obligations 819 12 16353

Expense recognized in the Statement of profit and loss 664 86 13238

[yiscount rate (p.a ) 6 85% 7 20%

Salury escalation rate (p a ) - senior staff 10 00% 10 00%

Salary escalntion rate (pa ) - junior staff 10.0084 10 00%

Compensated absences

The compensated absences cover the Company’s liability for casual and earned leave

Entire amount of the provision is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past
experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next t2 months The following amounts reflect leave that

is not expected to be taken or paid within the next 12 months

T In lakh
] As at 31 March As at 31 March
Particulars 2025 2024
Compensated absences expocled to e settled niter 12 months 691,66 14597

Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

¥ % In lakh

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

Particulars 2025 2024
Defineéd contribution plans :
Superannuation paid to trust 1939 -
Pension fund paid to Government authorities 4038 40 60
Provident fund paid to Government authorities 24623 113.62
Others 006 715
Defined Benefit Plans :
Gratuity 8731 2923
Others - 072
Totul 393.37 191.32




Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (formerly known as Chetak Technology Limited)
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33 _Disclosure of transactions with related parties as required by the Indian Accounting Standard 24

T in lakh
2024-25 2023-24
Name of related party and . =
Nature of relationship Nature of transaction i O.:.m::..n:.m amounts Outstanding amounts
Transaction value carried in the Balance Transaction value carried in the Balance
Sheet Sheet
A Holding company:
Bajaj Auto Limited (BAL) [nvestment in equity shares by BAL - (47,000.00) - (47,000.00)
(related party where control exists) (470.000.000 shares of T 10 each)
Serviees rendered (including reimbursement of expenses)
-Billed 7.695.98 2.012.38 4.558.72 =
~Unbilled 1.065.83 1.065.83 - -
Services received (including reimbursement of’ expenses)
-Billed 2,512.36 - 1.683.96 -
-Unbilled 781.75 (781.75) - -~
Purchases (including capital asset) - - 334.01 -
Sale of material/components (incl uding capital items) 63.01 - 20.468.59 3.346.95
Sale of CTL assets to BAL - - 14.758.49 -
B Fellow Subsidiary
Bajaj Auto Credit Limited Services rendered 0.97 1.14 - -
C Other entities/persons:
Bajaj Holdings & Investment Limited Services received (including reimbursement of expenses) - - 0.04 -
Maharashira Scooters Lid. Purchases (including services received) - - 6.98 -
Sales {including capital assets) - - - -
Services rendered = - - -
Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. Premium Paid 58.65 30.04 1.81 (1.14)
Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Co. Premium Paid 25.20 21.85 26.35 (3.35)
Bajaj Finance Ltd. Services rendered = - - =
Investment in/(redemption of) fixed deposit 22.350.00 22.350.00 - =
Interest income/(reversal) on fixed deposit 806.45 7362 - -
Services received =\ 6.18 (1.38) - 2
PN
Hind Musafir Agency Services received \N...Nzo\ /J* / 24.70 - 43.05 hw.\\.l.../r
B o
Bajaj Auto Employees Group Gratuity Fund Gratuity contribution & = J} E = 0.08 >
S\ 757
N~/
Bajaj Auto Employees Superannuation Fund Superannuation contribution NERED BV 19.39 = =
CN————
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7 in lakh
2024-25 < 2023-24
Name of related party and . - -
Nature of relationship Nature of transaction ] Outstanding amounts Outstanding amounts
Transaction value carried in the Balance Transaction value carried in the Balance
Sheet Sheet
Yulu Bikes Pvt Ltd Purchases (including services received) - - 759.08 (0.07)
Sales (including capital assets) - - 6.549.60 -
Services rendered - - 4.24 -

Name of the related party and nature of the related party relationship where control exists have been disclosed irrespective of whether or not there have been transactions between the related parties. In other cases, disclosure has
been made only when there have been transactions with those parties.

Related parties as defined under clause 9 of the Indian Accounting Standard - 24 "Related Party Disclosures” have been identified based on representations made by key managerial personnel and information available with the
company,

All above transactions are in the ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis. All outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash.
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Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

34 Capital management

Objectives, policies and processes of eapital management

The Company is cash surplus and has no capital other than Equity. The Company is not exposed to any regulatory imposed capital

requirements.

The cash surpluses are currently invested in income generating debt instruments (including through mutual funds) and money market
instruments depending on economic conditions in line with the guidelines set out by the management. Safety of capital is of prime
importance to ensure availability of capital for operations. Investment objective is to provide safety and adequate return on the surplus

funds
‘The Company does not have any borrowings and does not borrow funds unless circumstances require

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

T in lakh % In lakh

Equity 38,363.41 36,891.58
Less: Tangible and other assets 9,573.62 961.03
Working capital (excluding investments) 2.971.07 5.123.07
Investments in mutual funds and fixed deposits 25,818.72 30,807.48

No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes of capital management during the year
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35 Segment information

The Compuny has its

inlo one reportuble segment. Henee, separate diselosures are not made

36 Ratios

(2) Current ratio

(b) Debtequity ratio
(¢} Del serviee coverage ratio
(d) Retum on equily rutiv

(¢) [nventony wmoser ratio

() Frade receis ables tumover ratio

(@) I'ade pny ables wmoser ratio

() Net eaptal tumaver ratio

(i) Net profit ralio

(i) Retwm on capital employed

() Retum on investinents

Remurks

Numerator

Denominator

X In lakh

As at/ for the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Change due 1o
merease in
Current ligbilities

Not applicuble
Nut applicable
Change is duc to
increase in nel
prolit due Lo
recognilion of
delermed 1aves
Change is duc o
reduetion in
nerage inventory

Change is due o
NCrease in
nverage deblors
balance und
decrease in
Revenue from
coniracls with
custamers
Change is due 10
reduction in
Purchases
Change 1s due lo
decrease in
income during
current year.
Change is due to
Inerease m nel
profit due lo
resognilion of
delerred faxes
Change is due lo
decrease in net
loss & incicase in
capital employed

Change is due tlo
duerense in net
loss & incrense in
nverage
sharcholder’s
equily

37 MSME disclosure

Considering the Company has been extended credil period uplo 43 days by its vendors and payments being released on u timely basis, there is no liat

Current assels

Profit aller tax

Material cost

Revenue [rom
conlracls with
customers

Purchases

lotal income

Profit allet lax

Profit before tox

Proilt before fas

Curpenl Ihbilitpes

Average
sharcholder s
equity

Asg invenlory

Avg trade

receivables

[rade pavables

Working capitul

lolal income

Capital
employed

Average
sharcholder 5
equity

628 15375
(e Bl
134
555 EVIR
4.02 1034
0.39 048
14.9% <10 3%
2.2% -4 9%
-2.3% -1 8%

ity lowards interest on delwyed payments under

' The Micro, Small and Mudium linterprises Development Act 2006° during the year There is also no amount of outstanding interest in this regord, brought (orward (rom previous years Iifonmntion in

thix 1egard is on busis of intimation reeived. on requests made by the Company

38 Lense

The Compuny had Lotal cash outtlows for leuses of ¥ Nil Lakh for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024 - 21,453 1211 akh)

including its hulding Company), with regards Lo registration of vendors under the suid Act
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39 Shawe based payments (Employee stock option plans)

31 March 2025

The Compmiy grants its empliyess stock ophions under stock aptions plan of Bajj Auto Limitsd{the Holding Compmy'). The Company grants stock options and records them as per the
terms of drrangernent with the Holding Company. The scheme s manased and admitisterad by the Holding Company ind the suid scheme provides that ihese options would generally vest
rateabily over o period and e to be exercised based on terms of stock options. The compendation behefit in respect of the stock options is msessed, accounted and paid by the Company as per
the rechirye srrangement with the Holding Campany which represent the fair value of the options s accounted by Holding Company

The ubove ycheme is managed and administered by the Holding Campany  As per the recharge agreement the Company shall puy Halding Company the cost in relation to the i aptions as

cross charped to the Firm. Expense recagnised on account of “Employee stock compensation costs” is T 245. 17 lakh and corespanding carrying liability towards the Holding Company is T
64.80 Jakh

31 March 2024

The Board of Directors of the Halding Company in its meeting held on 25 April 2023, approved the issue of stock options of Bajaj Auto Limited Employee Stock Options Scheme 2019 (‘BAL

- ESOS -2019 °) to certain employess of the Company BAL - 2808 - 2019 is the primary arrangement under which shared plan service incentives are provided to certain specified employees
of the Holding Company and its’ subsidiaries in India

Particulars 31 March 2024
Grant date 25 April 2023
No of options granted 2,960
Exercise price 4,332.10
Weighted average fair value 1,143 72
Outstanding at the beginning of the year -
Granted during the year 2,960
OQutstanding at the end of the year 2,960
Vested and exercisable at the end of the year -

Range of Fair value 1,016:22 - | 247 52
Average Fair value of the option 1,143.72
feithied averaue remuining contraciual life 657

Method used for accounting for share based payment plan: |

The Company has used the fair value method to account for the compensation cost of stock options to employees The fair value of options used are estimated on the date of grant using the
Black Scholes model The key assumptions used in Black Scholes model for calculating fair value as on the date of grants are:

Price of the underlying share |
Grant date Risk Free interest rate Expected life Expected volatility | Dividend yield in the market at the fime of |
the aption grant
25 Apnl 2021 6 87% - 7 00% 3.51 vears - 6 51 vears 2593%-2837% 322% 433210
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40 Miscell

a here have boen no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in (hese linancial stalements

b The Company does nol have any 3enami property, where ans procecding hus been initiated or pending against the Company [or holding anv Benumi properts

¢ Ihe Company has performed (he assessment (o identify transactions with struck ofl companies as al 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 and identitied no compuny with any tronsuctions

d The Company has not traded or invested in enplo currency or vifual curreney during the financial vear,

¢ IheCompany hos nol granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans 1o promoters, directors, KMPs and (he reluted partics (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), ctther severally or jointly
with any other person

I- No funds have been advanced or loaned or insested cither lrom borowed funds or share premium or any olher sources or kind of Tunds by the Compuay W vt in any other person v entily, including
forengn cntities (“Intermediaries™), wilh the understanding, whether recorded in witting or otherwise. that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indircetly tend or invest in other persons or entilics
sdenbified i any manner whatsoever by or on bebalf of the company  Ultimale Renelicianes”) or provide any guaranice, scou ity or the hke on hehall ol the Ulumale Renelicianes

g NoTunds have been receised by the Company from any person or entity, imncluding foreign entities  Funding Parties™), with the und anding, whether recorded in wisting o othierwise, that the
Compuny shall, whether, directly or indirecily, lend or ivvest in ather persons or entitics 1dentified in any manuer whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ulunate Benelieraries ) or provide
uny pumantee, seeurity or the like on behuli of the Ullimate Beneticianes

h The Company has nol been dectared wilful defaulier by any bunk or financial institution or Government or iy Government authonity

i The Company has not boen sanclioned working capitol limits from banks or linancinl mstitutions during any point of tmze ol the year on (he basis of scew ity of current assels

1+ The Company does not have any transaction which is nol recorded i the books of accounts thut hus been surrendered or disclosed s income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or uny olher relesant provisions of the Income Tux Act, 1961)

k31 March 2025

The Company hos used necounting sollware SAP-S4 [IANA Lor maintaining ils books of account which has a feature of ecording audit Irail (edit Tog) tacility and the some hus operated throughout the
sear for all relevant transactions recorded in the soltware. Further. audit trail feature hus not been tampered with in respect of ccounting soltware where the audit tinil has been enabled - Additionally,
the Company has recorded nnd presen ed audit trail in (ull complionce with the requirements of section 128(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 Further, inrespeet of the FY 2023-24, the Company has
preserved the requirements of reconding. audit raal o the extent it was enubled and recorded in respeet of those vears

31 March 2024

Bujaj Auto [echnology Lid (BATL) has used SAP-S4 HANA o5 the accounting soltware in previous year SAP ensures an audit trail, providing standord functionality and logging in all chanped data
in the system. [his [unctionality and audit trail feature in SAP has been operational throughout the year fur all relevant ransactions recorded through the application ut BATL

ALBATL, aceounling documents arc used Lo record all business transactions ~ posted documents are stored in SAP for every transaction and a financial document onee posted cannot be deleled or
changed for data points impacting linancinls [he SAP enyironment al BAL is appropriotely gosemed and only suthorised users ean make postings in SAP, while inleructing with the system through
the application layer Nomul / regular users are not ganted nor have direet SAP-DB (database) or super user level access which would allow them to make any changes Lo linancial documents dircelly
which hnve lready buen posted through the application

To operate the SAP-upplication and the SAP-DI3, the system necessarily requires o set of super-users to have DB-level uceesses The: uper-users are obligated Lo pedform system related tasks. They
are not allowed Lo corry out any dircet chunges / edits Lo financial (ransactions in the SAP-DB, which il carried out is ill-legal, In the event of an unauthorised change by a super user specifically, these

can be detected through an investigutive approach und / or using services provided by SAP as part of their linancial dita quality cheek service, which validates the cons ney ol financials bused on the

request ol' the client. Therefore. while the SAP-DB at the moment does not have the coneurrent real lime audit trail Teature in view ol its infeasibility, the tracking ol chunges can be done through a
focused enquin process




Bajaj Auto Technology Limited (earlier known as Chetak Technology Limited)

Notes to financial statements for* the year ended 31 March 2025

I The Company dovs nol hose any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC heyond the statutory period

m  Figures for previous véar / period have been reprouped whereser necessary
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